
City of Craig 

To: City Administration/City Council 

From: Carl R. Ray 

cc: Mark Sollenberger, Liz White 

Date: 10/23/20 

Re: WWTP Handrail Replacement Project 

The WWTP Handrail Replacement Project was proposed to replace weak, poorly attached 
handrailing at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. The approved 2020 City of Craig Capital Budget 
has $60,000.00 for this project. Competitive bids were solicited, a mandatory pre-bid meeting 
was held, and an addendum was issued regarding this project. The bids were opened October 
22nd, 2020. Please refer to the bid tab sheet, individual bids and recommendation letter from our 
engineer in the council packet for further information on the WWTP Handrail Replacement 
Project. 

After careful review of the engineer’s recommendation and review of the bids. I recommend that 
we defer to the engineer’s recommendation accepting the bid from Faultless Fusion, LLC. I 
agree with the engineer that the bid from Power Source Services is incomplete and exclusions 
listed are required aspects of the project per the project manual. 

That being said, it is difficult to know whether change orders or additions due to the exclusions 
and lack of a complete bid would account for the difference in price between the two bidders. 
We have had projects with Power Source Services where the final dollar amount of the project 
was much higher than the proposed amount and/or additional work was necessary that should 
have been anticipated in the proposals. The handrailing at the WWTP has a high degree of 
detail and there would be a high cost for engineering to have detailed drawings of all the 
intricacies of the handrailing. The bid documents expect the successful bidder to adjust their bid 
to account for some field fitting and planning of the handrailing sections, not to request a change 
order for each and every minor modification. 
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October 23, 2020 
 
Liz White  
City Clerk  

City of Craig 
300 W 4th Street 
Craig, CO 81625 
 
 
RE: Bid Evaluation Recommendation – Wastewater Treatment Plant Handrail 
Replacement Project 
 
Dear Ms. White,  
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide a Contractor recommendation for the City of Craig 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Handrail Replacement Project. The project was competitively bid 
for three weeks with bids due October 22, 2020. Two bids were received; the bid tabulation is 
attached. Both bidders attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting, acknowledged the Addenda 
issued during the bidding period, and acknowledged the project completion dates.  
 

The low bid was received from Power Source Services (PSS) based in Craig, Colorado.  The bid 
prepared by PSS totaled $28,500.00. The higher bid was received from Faultless Fusion, LLC., 
based in Clifton, Colorado, totaling $46,036.00. The City budgeted $60,000.00 for this project. 
Both bidders are qualified for the scope of work for this project. 
 
The City has prior experience working with PSS, most recently installing handrail at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant around the Wet Wells. SGM understands PSS originally quoted the 
City $9,950.00 to complete the project; however, PSS ultimately billed $11,339.49 as they 
underestimated the time to complete the project. SGM has reviewed PSS bid for this project and 
found the bid to be incomplete. The majority of the exclusions listed in their bid are required to be 
provided per the Contract Documents and should be reflected in their bid price. SGM believes the 
low bid number reflects the intent to request change orders throughout the project as was the 
case during the handrail installation around the Wet Wells.   
 
SGM reviewed the submitted bid package prepared by Faultless Fusion, LLC and found the bid to 
be complete. SGM has prior working experience with Faultless Fusion, LLC, most recently 
fabricating a stainless steel valve stem for the City of Craig East Barclay Tank in addition to a 
fabricated stainless steel ladder for the Town of Breckenridge. The quality of work was 
exceptional in both instances. The City is welcome and encouraged to contact Town of 
Breckenridge for independent recommendations. A contact can be provided upon request. SGM 
believes the bid total submitted by Faultless Fusion, LLC is more in-line with the anticipated 
project budget.  
 
SGM recommends the City of Craig enter into a contract with Faultless Fusion, LLC, for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Handrail Replacement Project.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 970-964-7206. 
 



w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

GLENWOOD SPRINGS 118 West Sixth St, Suite 200 | Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 | 970.945.1004

Respectfully,  
 
SGM Inc. 
 

 
 
Theresa Weidmann, PE 
Project Manager and Senior Engineer, SGM 
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